
FILED 

lJNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MONTANA Nov 2 5 201~ 

NIISSOULA DIVISION Clerk U 
DiStrt .S. District 

~.0,NJonta;OlJrt 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, CV 13-3-M-DL~lJla a 

Plaintiff, 

-vs- STIPULATED PERMANENT 
INJUNCTION ORDER AND 


AMERICAN EVOICE, LTD., EMERICA MONETARY JUDGMENT 

MEDIA CORPORATION, FONERIGHT, 

INC., GLOBAL VOICE MAIL, LTD., 

HEARYOU2, INC., NETWORK 

ASSURANCE, INC., SEClJRATDAT, 

INC., TECHMAX SOLUTIONS, INC., 

VOICE MAIL PROFESSIONALS, INC., 

STEVE V. SANN, TERRY D. LANE, 

a/k/a TERRYD. SANN, NATHANM. 

SANN, ROBERT M. BRAACH, 


Defendants, 

and 

BIBLIOLOGIC, LTD., 

Relief Defendant. 

On 7�(On ) 0 138 �/P <</6A.9Ft�1j�0.267 0 T4.93ANN, P l a i n t Y D .  D. O n  " F T C " N N ,  P l a C E ,  D T E V E  O n  O n  " F T C C E ,  b ) A N N ,  P l s a C E ,  

D e f e n d s  � / P  < < / 6 2 4 0 9 3  5 2 � 0 . 4 8 6  0  T A m e r i c a n A I L  D .  

Case 9:13-cv-00003-DLC   Document 102   Filed 11/25/14   Page 1 of 19



HearYou2, Inc.; Network Assurance, Inc.; SecuratDat, Inc.; Techmax Solutions, 

Inc.; Voice Mail Professionals, Inc.; Steven V. Sann; Terry D. Lane (a/k/a Terry D. 

Sann); Nathan M. Sann; and Robert M. Braach ("Defendants"); and Relief 

Defendant Bibliologic, Ltd. On March 1,2013, Defendant Nathan M. Sann filed 

an Answer (D.E. 39) denying the FTC's allegations and setting forth various 

affirmative defenses. 

Plaintiff FTC and Defendant Nathan M. Sann have now stipulated to the 

entry of this Stipulated Permanent Injunction ("Order") to resolve all matters in 

dispute in this action between them. 

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED as follows: 

FINDINGS 

1. 	 This Court has jurisdiction over this matter. 

2. 	 The FTC's Complaint charges that Defendants engaged in deceptive 

and unfair acts or practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 

15 U.S.C. § 45, by placing unauthorized charges on consumers' 

telephone bills ("cramming"). 

3. 	 Defendant Nathan M. Sann neither admits nor denies any of the 

allegations in the Complaint, except as specifically stated in this 

Order. Only for purposes of this action, Defendant Nathan M. Sann 

admits the facts necessary to establish jurisdiction. 
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that are accessed or displayed through hyperlinks, pop-ups, 

interstitials, or other means are NOT "In Close Proximity." 

5. 	 "Individual Defendants" means Steven V. Sann; Terry D. Lane 

(a/k/a Terry D. Sann); Nathan M. Sann; and Robert M. Braach. 

6. 	 "Person" means a natural person, an organization or other legal 

entity, including a corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, 

limited liability company, association, cooperative, or any other group 

or com.bination acting as an entity. 

ORDER 

I. PROHIBITION AGAINST TELEPHONE BILLING 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Defendant Nathan M. Sann is 

permanently restrained and enjoined from placing charges on any person's 

telephone bill, whether directly or through an intermediary, including by providing 

any advertising, marketing, financial, or technical assistance 



representing or assisting others in representing, expressly or by implication, that a 

consumer is obligated to pay any charge for goods or services, or 
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Order in connection with the placement ofcharges on 

http:21,203,496.73


2. Within five (5) days of the entry of this Order, Defendant Nathan M. 

Sann shall surrender and deliver to the Commission or its designated 

representative all right, title and interest to, and possession of the 

precious metal coins identified in Item 17 of Defendant Nathan M. 

Sann's Financial Statement dated February 6, 2013, and further described 

in supplemental financial infonnation provided to the FTC in an email 

dated July 23,2014, from Nathan M. Sann's counsel. The Commission 

or its designated representative shall then liquidate the coins, and the net 

proceeds of the sale shall be paid to the Commission in partial 

satisfaction of the monetary judgment. 

3. Upon the payment required by Section IV.B, the remainder of the 

monetary judgment is suspended, subject to Sections IV.D through IV.G 

below. 

4. The Commission's agreement to the suspension ofpart of the monetary 

judgment is expressly premised upon the truthfulness, accuracy, and 

completeness of the Defendant Nathan M. Sann's sworn financial 

statements and related documents (collectively, "financial 

representations") submitted to the Commission, namely: 

a. 	 Financial Statement ofDefendant Nathan M. Sann signed on 

February 6, 2013, including attachments; and 
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2. The facts alleged in the Complaint will be taken as true, without 



the Commission may apply any 



2. 	 For 5 years after entry of this Order, Defendant Nathan M. Sann, for any 

business that he, individually or collectively 



physical, postal, email, and Internet addresses; (c) describe the 

activities ofeach business, including the goods and services 

offered, the means ofadvertising, marketing, sales, methods of 

payment, and the involvement ofany other Defendant (which 

Defendant Nathan M. Sann must describe ifhe knows or should 

know due to his own involvement); (d) describe in detail 

whether and how he is in compliance with each Section of this 

Order; and (e) provide a copy of each Order Acknowledgment 

obtained pursuant to this Order, unless previously submitted to 

the Commission. 

b. 	 Defendant Nathan M. Sann must: (a) identify all telephone 

numbers and all physical, postal, email and Internet addresses, 

including all residences; (b) identify all business activities, 

including any business for which he performs services whether 

as an employee or otherwise and any entity in which he has any 

ownership interest; and (c) describe in detail his involvement in 

each such business, including title, role, responsibilities, such 



2. For 10 years after entry of this Order, Defendant Nathan M. Sann 



mailto:DEbrief@ftc.gov


1. accounting records showing the revenues from all goods or services sold 

or billed; 

2. 	 personnel !ecords showing, for each person providing services, whether 

as an employee or otherwise, that person's: name; addresses; telephone 

numbers; job title or position; dates of service; and (if applicable) the 

reason for termination; 

3. records of all consumer complaints and refund requests, whether received 

directly or indirectly, such as through a third party, and any response; 

4. 	 all records necessary to demonstrate full compliance with each provision 

of this Order, including all submissions to the Commission; and 

5. 	 a copy of each unique advertisement or other marketing material. 

x. COMPLIANCE MONITORING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for purposes of monitoring Defendant 

Nathan M. Sann's compliance with this Order, including the financial 

representations identified in Section IV.E and the payment of funds and transfer of 

property required by Section IV.B and IV.C of this Order: 

1. 	 Within 21 days ofreceipt of a written request from a representative ofthe 

Commission, Defendant Nathan M. Sann must: submit additional 

compliance reports or other requested information, which must be sworn 

under penalty ofperjury; appear for depositions; and produce documents 
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for inspection and copying. The Commission is also authorized to obtain 

discovery, without further leave of court, using any of the procedures 

prescribed by Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 29, 30 (including 

telephonic depositions), 31, 33, 34, 36, 45, and 69. 

2. For matters concerning this Order, the Commission is authorized to 

communicate directly with Defendant Nathan M. Sann. Defendant 

Nathan M. Sann must permit representatives of the Commission to 

interview any employee or other person affiliated with any Defendant 

who has agreed to such an interview. The person interviewed may have 

counsel present. 

3. The Commission may use all other lawful means, including posing, 

through its representatives as consumers, suppliers, or other individuals 

or entities, to Defendant Nathan M. Sann or any individual or entity 

affiliated with him, without the necessity of identification or prior notice. 

Nothing in this Order limits the Commission's lawful use of compUlsory 

process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 49, 

57b-1. 
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RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that that this Court retains jurisdiction of 

this matter for purposes of construction, modification, and enforcement of this 

Order. 

~ 
Dated this 2S day ofNovember 

Dana L. Christensen, Chief Judge 
United States District Court 
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